
 
County Offices 

Newland 
Lincoln 

LN1 1YL 
 

18 January 2021 
 

In accordance with the powers granted by the Local Authorities and Police and 
Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime 
Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 this will be a virtual 
meeting. 

 
Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee 

 
A meeting of the Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee will be held 
on Tuesday, 26 January 2021 at 10.00 am as a Virtual - Online Meeting via 
Microsoft Teams for the transaction of the business set out on the attached Agenda.  
 
Access to the meeting is as follows: 
 
Members of the Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee and officers of 
the County Council supporting the meeting will access the meeting via Microsoft 
Teams. 
 
Members of the public and the press may access the meeting via the following link: 

https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=551&MId=5787&Ver=4 

where a live feed will be made available on the day of the meeting. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Debbie Barnes OBE 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Membership of the Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee  
(11 Members of the Council) 
 
Councillors N H Pepper (Chairman), A N Stokes (Vice-Chairman), W J Aron, 
K J Clarke, Ms K Cook, Mrs P Cooper, Mrs C J Lawton, C R Oxby, 
A H Turner MBE JP, L Wootten and R Wootten 
 
 

Public Document Pack

https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk%2FieListDocuments.aspx%3FCId%3D551%26MId%3D5787%26Ver%3D4&data=04%7C01%7CNicholas.Harrison%40lincolnshire.gov.uk%7C3d0d95c2d0dc4901a7ff08d896a5d01f%7Cb4e05b92f8ce46b59b2499ba5c11e5e9%7C0%7C0%7C637424986185366908%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=NWwi%2BFWW%2BjsD5TvHuWQPmJWkReFf69LY6rmhZiBHytA%3D&reserved=0




PUBLIC PROTECTION AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AGENDA 
TUESDAY, 26 JANUARY 2021 

 
 
Item Title 

 
Pages  

1  Apologies for Absence/Replacement Members  
 

 

2  Declarations of Members' Interests  
 

 

3  Minutes of the previous meeting held on 8 December 2020  
 

5 - 12 

4  Announcements by the Chairman, Executive Councillors and 
Chief Officers  
 

 

5  Revenue and Capital Budget Proposals 2021/22  
(To consider a report from Keith Noyland, Head of Finance – 
Communities, on Revenue and Capital Budget Proposals 
2021/22, which is being presented to the Executive on 2 February 
2021. The views of the Committee will be reported to the 
Executive as part of its consideration of this item) 
 

13 - 18 

6  East Coast Inundation Plan  
(To consider a report from Mark Baxter – Chief Fire Officer, 
Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue, on an East Coast Inundation 
Plan) 
 

19 - 26 

7  Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme  
(To receive a report from the Scrutiny Officer, which provides the 
Committee with the opportunity to consider and comment on the 
content of its work programme for the coming year to ensure that 
scrutiny activity is focussed where it can be of greatest benefit) 
 
 
 
 

27 - 30 

 

 
 
 

Democratic Services Officer Contact Details  
 
Name: Nick Harrison 

 
  
E Mail Address nicholas.harrison@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 



Please note:  for more information about any of the following please contact 
the Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting 
 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports 
 
Contact details set out above. 
 
All papers for council meetings are available on: 
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/council-business/search-committee-records 
 

 

https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/council-business/search-committee-records


  1 

 
 PUBLIC PROTECTION AND 

COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

 8 DECEMBER 2020 
 

 

PRESENT:  COUNCILLOR N H PEPPER (CHAIRMAN) 
 
Councillors A N Stokes (Vice-Chairman), W J Aron, K J Clarke, Mrs C J Lawton, 
C R Oxby, L Wootten and R Wootten 
 
Councillors: C N Worth, B Young and L A Cawrey attended the meeting as observers 
 
Officers in attendance:- 
 
Sara Barry (Acting Assistant Director - Public Protection), Steven Batchelor 
(Lincolnshire Road Safety Partnership Senior Manager), Mark Baxter (Chief Fire 
Officer), Diane Coulson (Assistant Director - Public Protection), Paul Drury (Prevent 
Officer), Nick Harrison (Democratic Services Officer), Clare Newborn (Interim Head 
of Service - Community Safety), Paul Smith (Acting Senior Coroner) and Nigel West 
(Head of Democratic Services and Statutory Scrutiny Officer) 
 
32     APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE/REPLACEMENT MEMBERS 

 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Ms K Cook. 
 
33     DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS 

 
There were no declarations. 
 
34     MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 27 OCTOBER 2020 

 
RESOLVED:  
 
That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 27 October 2020 be approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman.  
 
35     ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE CHAIRMAN, EXECUTIVE COUNCILLORS 

AND CHIEF OFFICERS 
 

There were no announcements. 
 
36     SERVICE LEVEL PERFORMANCE REPORTING AGAINST THE 

PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2020-2021 - QUARTERS 1 AND 2 
 

Consideration was given to a report from the Acting Assistant Director - Public 
Protection and the Chief Fire Officer, on the Service Level Performance Reporting 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



2 
PUBLIC PROTECTION AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
8 DECEMBER 2020 
 

 

against the Performance Framework 2020-2021 - Quarters 1 and 2. The Corporate 
Plan had been approved by the County Council on 11 December 2019 and the 
Executive approved the Corporate Plan Performance Framework 2020/21 on 6 
October 2020. The Framework contained performance indicators and key activities 
against which performance and progress would be reported in order to demonstrate 
whether the Council was achieving the ambitions for Lincolnshire as set out in the 
Corporate Plan. The report highlighted the performance measures for the following 
services:- community safety, fire safety, libraries and heritage, road safety, trading 
standards and volunteering.  
 
Members considered the report, and during the discussion the following comments 
were noted:- 

 The impact of the Covid pandemic on some of the targets and services was 
noted. 

 The seizure of illicit tobacco and alcohol target had not been achieved due to 
Covid restrictions and it was noted activity had increased recently. Products 
seized were a mixture of home-made and imported. Products had been seized 
from shops which had been targeted for inspection and also from homes. 
There had been a number of reports from A and E of cases of illness due to 
drinking illicit alcohol but no deaths recorded. 

 Details were awaited following Brexit on any changes to trading standards. 

 Incidents of domestic abuse as of March 2020 showed that 70% of reports had 
been recorded as crimes. Nationally this figure was 59%. It was noted that 
after the perpetrator was charged the victim sometimes withdrew their 
complaint. Victims were supported through the whole process and sometimes 
charges were proceeded with without the support of the victim where it was 
deemed in the public's interest and appropriate. 

 
RESOLVED:   That the report be received and the performance for Quarters 1 and 2 
be noted. 
 
37     ROAD SAFETY PARTNERSHIP ANNUAL REPORT 

 
Consideration was given to a report from the Lincolnshire Road Safety Partnership 
Senior Manager, on the Road Safety Partnership Annual Report and the work being 
undertaken by the Road Safety Partnership to reduce the number of people killed 
and injured on county Roads. The report provided an update on fatal, and serious 
injury (KSI) casualty figures for Lincolnshire, plus data on trends, comparisons and 
areas of priority.  
 
The report highlighted:- national strategies, policies and guidance; an analysis of the 
data, Lincolnshire Road Safety Partnership (LRSP) organisational structure, 
priorities, activities, services, projected Income/Expenditure 2019/20; delivery of 
education, training and publicity to schools/colleges; coronavirus Impact.  
 
It was noted that the LRSP co-located forensic collision investigators and casualty 
reduction officers from Lincolnshire Police with LCC's Accident Investigation and 
Road Safety teams to form a multi-agency centralised road safety unit. Lincolnshire 
Fire and Rescue also had staff based with the LRSP who co-ordinated all fire and 

Page 6



3 
PUBLIC PROTECTION AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

8 DECEMBER 2020 
 

 

rescue road safety related activity. Additionally, the deployment and maintenance of 
safety cameras was managed within the LRSP. Consequently, the entire core 
functions of road safety, namely engineering, education and enforcement were co-
ordinated from this centre. 
 
Members considered the report, and during the discussion the following comments 
were noted:- 

 The Committee welcomed the comprehensive and informative report.  

 In 2019, 54 people had been killed and 480 seriously injured on the roads of 
Lincolnshire. 46 had been killed so far this year. It was noted that most 
accidents occurred on rural roads, casualties were most likely to be male, the 
vehicle type most likely to be involved were motorcycles and those involved 
were most likely to be the young or elderly. 

 It was noted that during the Covid pandemic there had been less traffic on the 
roads with people taking fewer journeys and therefore less opportunities for 
accidents, however there had been evidence that vehicles had been driving 
faster. 

 Lincolnshire Road Safety Partnership was working with other agencies 
nationally to consider and review road safety strategies, including measures to 
curb speeding. 

 Average speed cameras were seen as one of the most effective methods of 
decreasing speed and managing traffic flow. The cost of new cameras started 
at approximately £70k and there were currently 80 sites in operation in the 
County. LRSP also operated mobile camera enforcement systems. The 
Department for Transport set out guidance and criteria for the introduction of 
new cameras and this was primarily based on the number of collisions at 
specific sites. There were concerns expressed that there were a number of 
areas in the County where communities had expressed concern about 
speeding and potential danger but which had no history of collisions. It was 
also thought that not all collisions were reported and recorded. The 
Lincolnshire Road Safety Partnership Senior Manager confirmed that a review 
was underway to see what further could be done in these circumstances. It 
was noted that a risk based approach would be taken and any action would 
need to be managed within existing resources.  

 Members welcomed the tiered approach in looking at improvements to road 
safety. Particular mention was given to the High Dyke Lane area. 

 It was noted that East Lindsey had a higher rate of accidents. It was thought 
that tourists who were unfamiliar roads may account for some of the accidents. 
The Lincolnshire Road Safety Partnership Senior Manager undertook to look 
at the postcode data on accidents and forward the information to the 
Committee. He would also include, if feasible, whether street lights were on or 
off at the time of these accidents, and include data on cyclists and 
pedestrians.  

 The impact of the Covid pandemic on speed awareness courses were noted 
as was the successful roll out of 12000 digital courses instead. Feedback had 
been positive re the digital courses to date. It was hoped that a blended 
approach of face to face and digital courses could be offered post pandemic. 

Page 7



4 
PUBLIC PROTECTION AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
8 DECEMBER 2020 
 

 

Educational delivery to schools had also been reduced due to the pandemic 
but it was hoped that normal service could be resumed in the near future. 

 There were over 250 parishes involved in Community Speed Watch and 50 
active groups monitoring speed. Consideration was being given to obtaining 
volunteers in un-parished areas. It was noted that it was up to each parish 
council to request replacements for any faded signposting. 

 
(Councillors N Worth and Mrs C Lawton gave their apologies and left the meeting) 
 
RESOLVED:   That the report be received, the comments noted and it be recorded 
that the Committee was reassured by the work being undertaken by the Road Safety 
Partnership to reduce the number of people killed and injured on county roads. 
 
38     FIRE AND RESCUE STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2019-20 

 
Consideration was given to a report from the Chief Fire Officer, on the Fire and 
Rescue Statement of Assurance. The Fire and Rescue National Framework for 
England set out the requirement for fire and rescue authorities to provide an annual 
Statement of Assurance on financial, governance and operational matters. The 
Statement would be used as a source of information on which to base the Secretary 
of State’s biennial report under section 25 of the Fire and Rescue Service Act 2004. 
 
The report summarised that Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue (LFR) Authority was 
satisfied that the systems and measures it had in place with respect of financial, 
governance and operational matters for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 
were fit for purpose and effective. It was satisfied that its business was conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards and that public money was properly 
accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. It was also satisfied 
that, where appropriate, the National Framework requirements had been met. 
 
Members considered the report, and during the discussion the following comments 
were noted:- 

 The Committee thanked the Chief Fire Officer for a comprehensive and 
detailed report and presentation. 

 The financial statements were awaited and had been delayed due to the Covid 
pandemic. 

 CIPFA data was used to compare costs and value for money with other fire 
departments across the country. In comparison, Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue 
(LFR) Authority were efficient and effective. It was noted that it was difficult to 
compare Authorities like for like as crew numbers varied as did fire appliances 
for example. 

 Flooding wasn’t a statutory responsibility, however Lincolnshire had the skills 
and equipment to deal with any call outs. Call outs to flooding had an impact 
on the statistics measuring performance as these incidents often took a long 
time to resolve and often involved a large number of officers. It was 
recognised there needed to be common benchmarks across the country. 

 The partnership arrangements with other Authorities was noted. These 
Authorities provided support if called upon to do so. 

Page 8



5 
PUBLIC PROTECTION AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

8 DECEMBER 2020 
 

 

 The Authority had setup a dedicated and trained peer support team which was 
available 24 hours a day to support officers and signpost services to 
specialists. There had been a significant uptake in this service and it was 
suggested that this was due to a number of reasons including normal life 
stress under the Covid pandemic, work stress and also officers being more 
comfortable with seeking support and greater awareness of services available. 
Work was on going into looking at how stress could be reduced and prevented 
which was seen as a national as well as local priority. From January 2021 
more virtual 'touch in times' would be launched for senior managers to meet 
officers. These would be in addition to face to face meetings but would be 
these engagement meetings would be separate from any formal inspection 
visits. 

 Future plans included promoting wellbeing of the workforce, development of IT 
capabilities, reviewing prevention and protection capabilities and developing a 
more robust evaluation framework to look at the impact of the service. 

 There had been minimal impact on crews during the first lockdown as a result 
Covid-19. During the second lockdown increased testing had found a small 
number of cases but the impact on the service had been minimal as crews and 
resourcing had been redistributed in accordance with an immediate response 
plan. 

 
RESOLVED: That the report be received, the comments noted and the Lincolnshire 
Fire and Rescue Authority’s Statement of Assurance for 2019-20 be supported. 
  
39     CORONERS SERVICE ANNUAL REPORT 

 
Consideration was given to a report from the Acting Senior Coroner and the Acting 
Assistant Director - Public Protection, on the Coroners Service Annual Report which 
had been produced in accordance with the requirement of HM Chief Coroner for 
England and Wales.  
 
The report outlined:- the role of the Coroner; statutory duties; the Coronial jurisdiction 
for the county that was coterminous with the County Council and Police force area; 
Coroners statistics 2019; challenges and achievements 2019/2020; impact of Covid; 
the current review of the service; merger discussions with North and North East 
Lincolnshire. It was noted that despite the challenges as stated in the report the 
Coroners Service had improved the time taken for an Inquest to be heard and had 
received great feedback from families they had supported in finding closure of the 
sudden death of a loved one. 
 
Members considered the report introduced by the Acting Senior Coroner, and during 
the discussion the following comments were noted:- 

 The detailed and informative report was welcomed. 

 The current challenges of providing the service were noted. These included 
the effect of Covid-19 restrictions on the service, an increase in the number of 
deaths, the on going lack of suitable court room accommodation, staff 
shortages and an inherited backlog of cases for the current post holder. 

 It was noted that during the Covid19 lockdowns, listing cases for Inquest had 
been problematic due to families and witnesses shielding. Statements during 

Page 9



6 
PUBLIC PROTECTION AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
8 DECEMBER 2020 
 

 

these periods had been submitted in written form to reduce the need for 
personal appearances. 

 There had been service improvements since 2017 and the number of Inquests 
outstanding had been reduced and staff numbers had increased which was 
welcomed by the Committee.  

 The Transformation Project being undertaken by the Council was welcomed 
by the Acting Senior Coroner, as was the possible merger with North and 
North East Lincolnshire services to produce economies of scale. It was hoped 
that there could be a move to non invasive procedures in the future by using a 
CT scanner. This was one of the issues being reviewed as part of the 
Transformation Project. 

 Members discussed the loss of post mortem facilities in Lincolnshire due to 
contractual provisions and the need for these to now be carried out in Hull, 
Leicester or Nottingham. This issue had a significant impact the service 
budget due to transportation costs. It was noted that the re tendering process 
for this service would be commencing shortly. 

 Due to the pandemic, one GP had been required to complete a cremation 
form. It was hoped by members that the need for two GP's to sign would be 
introduced again to strengthen governance and oversight.     

 
RESOLVED:   That the report be received and the progress and performance of the 
Coroners Service be noted. A further report be submitted to the 27 July meeting with 
an update on the Transformation Project and the potential merger with North and 
North East Lincolnshire. 
 
40     PUBLIC PROTECTION AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

WORK PROGRAMME 
 

The Committee noted a report from the Senior Scrutiny Officer, which provided the 
Committee with the opportunity to consider and comment on the content of its work 
programme for the coming year to ensure that scrutiny activity was focussed where it 
could be of greatest benefit. 
 
(Councillor L Cawrey gave her apologies and left the meeting)  
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee Work Programme be approved. 
 
41     SITTING AS THE CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 

ANNUAL REVIEW OF PREVENT 
 

Consideration was given to a report from the Prevent Officer and the Interim Head of 
Service - Community Safety, on an update on Prevent activity in Lincolnshire during 
2019/20, to enable the Committee to keep a 'watching brief' of Prevent. 
 
In respect of terrorism, Lincolnshire was assessed to be a low risk area, but it was 
important not to be complacent. This report was primarily concerned with the 
Council’s role in delivering one element of the CONTEST strategy: Prevent’ – aimed 
at reducing the threat to the UK from terrorism by stopping people becoming 
terrorists or supporting terrorism. Prevent placed a statutory duty on certain specified 

Page 10



7 
PUBLIC PROTECTION AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

8 DECEMBER 2020 
 

 

authorities, including councils, to “have due regard to the need to prevent people 
from being drawn into terrorism” as per the Counter-Terrorism and Security Act 2015. 
Prevent had three objectives: tackle the causes of radicalisation and respond to the 
ideological challenge of terrorism; safeguard and support those most at risk of 
radicalisation through early intervention, identifying them and offering support; enable 
those who had already engaged in terrorism to disengage and rehabilitate. 
 
The report outlined the framework for governance and leadership for undertaking this 
role; the multi-agency approach to provide support at an early stage to those 
identified as being vulnerable to being drawn into any form of terrorism or supporting 
terrorist organisations training and development of County Council staff; work being 
undertaken with local communities and civil society organisations; the impact of 
Covid. 
 
RESOLVED:   That the report be received and it be noted that the Committee was 
satisfied with the Prevent activity undertaken in 2019/20 to meet the Council's 
statutory responsibilities. 
 
 
The meeting closed at 12.57 pm 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



       
 

Open Report on behalf of Mark Baxter, Chief Fire Officer, 
Andy Gutherson, Executive Director - Place and  

Andrew Crookham, Executive Director - Resources 
 

Report to: 
Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny 
Committee 

Date: 26 January 2021 

Subject: Revenue and Capital Budget Proposals 2021/22  

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This report outlines the budget proposals for the next financial year 2021/22.  
  
The Final Local Government Finance Settlement for 2021/22 has not been 
issued at the time of writing this report; however it is expected to be in line with 
the Provisional Settlement issued on 17 December 2020. Further budgetary 
information is also awaited from the Lincolnshire District Councils so the budget 
proposals for 2021/22 are therefore estimated at this stage. 
 
This report specifically looks at the budget implications for the Council's Public 
Protection and Communities services.  
  
The Executive approved the budget proposals, including those set out in this 
report, as its preferred option for the purposes of further consultation at its 
meeting on 5 January 2021.  
 
Members of this Committee have the opportunity to scrutinise them and make 
comment, prior to the Executive meeting on 2 February 2021 when it will make its 
final budget proposals for 2021/22. 

 
 

Actions Required: 

Members of the Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee are 
asked to consider this report and make comments on the budget proposals. 
These will be considered by the Executive at its meeting on 2 February 2021. 

 
 
1. Background 
 

1.1. The Spending Review (SR2020) results were announced by the Chancellor 
of the Exchequer on 25 November 2020. This was a spending review 
covering one year only to reflect the uncertainties caused by the coronavirus 
pandemic. The Office for Budget Responsibility published economic 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



forecasts alongside the SR2020; these show that spending, public sector 
debt and the budget deficit are all much higher than forecast in March 2020 
and that the UK economy is set to contract significantly this year.  

 
1.2. As expected, the SR2020 confirmed a "roll-over" settlement for local 

authorities. The Chancellor has ruled out returning to a programme of 
austerity to tackle the budget deficit, which is an indication that significant 
cuts in spending will not be required over the medium term. However the 
Chancellor announced a pay freeze for most public sector employees in 
2021/22, the exceptions being National Health Service staff and public 
sector employees with a full time basic salary of up to £24,000.  This latter 
group will receive a flat uplift of £250.  Other announcements included: 

 

 An overall real terms increase in core spending power in 2021/22 of 
4.4% (but the sector is still worse off in real and cash terms compared to 
in 2010/11). 

 The National Living Wage will increase to £8.91 per hour from April 
2021 for people aged 23 years and over. This has been factored into our 
cost pressures. 

 Councils providing Adult Social Care services can charge an adult social 
care precept of up to 3% in 2021/22, which can be deferred to 2022/23. 

 The referendum limit will remain at 2% for general council tax.  This 
means that a total council tax increase of up to 5% can be charged by 
Councils providing Adult Social Care services before requiring a 
referendum. 

 Revenue Support Grant will be inflated by 0.55%. 

 There will be a Tax Income Guarantee Scheme which will fund 75% of 
irrecoverable council tax and business rates losses in 2021/22. The 
details of how this will work are not yet known. 

 
1.3. The coronavirus pandemic has impacted significantly in the 2020/21 

financial year, on both Council services and the local economy, and central 
Government has provided grant funding to cover the Council's costs and 
losses arising directly from the pandemic. It is assumed that where direct 
impacts carry on into 2021/22 these will continue to be funded by 
Government grant. The SR2020 announcement confirmed that there would 
be funding in 2021/22 to cover continuing coronavirus costs and losses. 

 
1.4. The funding confirmed in the provisional settlement announced on 17 

December 2020 was largely in line with our estimates, but we also received 
confirmation of additional funding of £5.354m for Local Council Tax Support. 
We had not planned for this new grant, but anticipate that it will be required 
to cover reduced funding from Council Tax, arising from a lower Council 
Taxbase and / or a Council Tax Collection Fund deficit due to the impact of 
the pandemic. This is now the biggest risk to our budgetary position next 
year, and the impact will not be confirmed until after 31 January 2021 when 
the Lincolnshire District Councils report their budget figures to us. 

 
1.5. The Final Local Government Finance Settlement is expected to be 

published in February 2021. 

Page 14



1.6. Members will be aware that central Government planned to implement 
significant funding reforms for the sector.  There are two aspects to these 
reforms: the Review of Relative Needs and Resources (formerly known as 
the Fair Funding Review), and 75% Business Rates Retention. These 
reforms were originally due to be implemented from April 2020, and were 
later deferred to April 2021. Earlier this year, the Government announced a 
further deferral until April 2022 so that the focus this year could be on 
supporting local government in the face of the coronavirus pandemic. 

 
1.7. In view of the continuing uncertainties about future levels of funding, a one 

year budget is proposed for 2021/22. 
 
1.8. Budgets have been reviewed in detail based on the latest available 

information to arrive at the proposals set out in this report. A number of new 
cost pressures have emerged in addition to the pressures identified for 
2021/22 in the previous year's budget process. In some areas, savings 
which can be made through efficiencies with no or minimal impact on the 
level of service delivery have also been identified.  In developing the 
proposed financial plan, budget holders have considered all areas of current 
spending, levels of income and council tax plus use of one off funding 
(including use of reserves and capital receipts) to set a balanced budget. 

 
1.9. At its meeting on 5 January 2021 the Executive approved, for the purposes 

of further consultation, proposals for the Council's revenue and capital 
budgets including a proposed council tax increase for 2021/22 of 1.99%.  
 

Revenue Budget 
 
1.10. Table A shows the total proposed revenue budget for the Council's Public 

Protection and Communities services. 
 

TABLE A 

2020/21 

Budget

Pay 

Inflation

Cost 

Pressures
Savings

Proposed 

Budget 

2021/22

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Registration, Celebratory and Coroners 1,407 13 536 -108 1,848 

Trading Standards & Community Safety 2,138 15 585 -98 2,640 

Fire and Rescue 21,496 97 391 0 21,984 

Emergency Planning 325 3 0 0 328 

Road Safety 348 6 0 0 354 

Cultural Services 6,782 18 42 0 6,842 

Community Engagement 906 3 0 0 909 

Total 33,402 155 1,554 -206 34,906 

2021/22 Revenue Budget

 
 
1.11. Given the expectation of public sector pay restraint, the budget proposals for 

these services have currently allowed for pay inflation of 0.75% to adjust 
budgets for the higher than budgeted pay award in 2020; no further pay 
inflation has been provided for in 2021/22. There are service specific cost 
pressures for 2021/22 totalling £1.554m. 

Page 15



1.12. In the Coroners Service cost pressures totalling £0.536m relate to the 
review of mortuary, histology, toxicology, post mortem and conveyancing 
contracts and the service transformation programme. 
 

1.13. An increased budget requirement for the Community Safety Service of 
£0.585m arises from increased statutory duties in the Domestic Abuse 
Service and the requirement to fund activities previously funded from 
reserves.  
 

1.14. For Fire and Rescue, cost pressures of £0.391m are related to increased 
costs to ensure resilience in the Control function, a requirement to increase 
the level of training to provide greater skill and capability to operational staff 
to give emergency medical treatment to the public at incidents, especially 
when no ambulance or medical professionals are on scene and some minor 
increases in property related costs. 
 

1.15. A cost pressure of £0.042m in Cultural Services results from contractual 
inflation in Library provision. 
 

1.16. Savings of £0.206m are anticipated in 2021/22 from increased grant income 
to support the cost pressures in Community Safety (£0.098m) and an 
increased income target for Registration and Celebratory Services 
(£0.108m).  
 

1.17. During 2020/21 a number of service budgets, particularly Registration, 
Celebratory, Coroners and Cultural Services, were significantly impacted by 
the coronavirus pandemic with the consequential increases in costs and 
income losses being met from the grant provided by Government. Proposed 
budgets for 2021/22 are based on the assumption that any continuing 
impacts on Council services will be, similarly, fully grant funded. 
 
 

Capital Programme 
 

1.18. The ten year Capital Programme approved as part of budget setting last 
year has been reviewed in line with the principles set out in the Council's 
Capital Strategy, including the principle of affordability. Schemes include a 
number of major highways projects, provision of school places, replacement 
of two Household Waste Recycling Centres, the rolling programme of 
renewal and replacement of fire fleet vehicles, gritter fleet and vehicles at 
the Waste Transfer Stations, improvements and review of the property 
portfolio, Information Technology developments and re-phasing of existing 
schemes. 

 
1.19. The full gross programme totals £204.302m for 2021/22 plus a further 

£322.097m for future years. After grants and contributions are taken into 
consideration, the net programme to be funded by the County Council is 
£111.283m for 2021/22 plus a further £282.808m for future years. 
 

Page 16



1.20. The capital programme net budget has increased since last year's budget 
process with the most significant increases in the gross programme covered 
by additional funding or by rephasing budgets on other schemes into later 
years. 
 

1.21. Table B shows the proposed gross capital programme for the Council's 
Public Protection and Communities services. 
 
TABLE B 

Capital Programme

(2020/21 plus Future Years)
Revised 

Gross 

Programme

2020/21

£m

Revised 

Gross 

Programme

2021/22

£m

Gross 

Programme

Future 

Years

£m

Fire and Rescue & Emergency Planning
Refurbishment of fire and rescue 

properties.
0.393 1.074 0.000

Fire Fleet Vehicles and Associated Equipment

Rolling programme for the replacement 

of fire and rescue fleet vehicles and 

associated equipment.

4.097 3.128 6.540

4.489 4.203 6.540

Registration Celebratory & Coroners Service

Coroners IT system for case 

management, and improvement to 

Gainsborough celebratory premises.

0.082 0.000 0.000

Safer Communities Vehicle for Trading Standards 0.025 0.000 0.000

Total - Public Protection 0.107 0.000 0.000

Libraries
RFID replacement kiosks and library hub 

capital works.
0.521 0.000 0.000

Historic Lincoln
Improvement programme for Lincoln 

Castle.
0.017 0.000 0.000

Heritage / Archives
Future development of the Heritage 

service.
2.500 2.500 0.000

Total - Culture 3.037 2.500 0.000

FIRE AND RESCUE & EMERGENCY PLANNING

Total - Fire and Rescue & Emergency Planning

PUBLIC PROTECTION

CULTURE

 
 

1.22. Other than some re-phasing of existing project expenditure there have been 
no changes to the previously approved capital programme relating to Public 
Protection and Communities services. 

  
Further consultation 

 
1.23. A consultation meeting with local business representatives, trade unions and 

other partners is scheduled to take place on 28 January 2021. 
 
1.24. The proposals will be publicised on the Council website together with the 

opportunity for the public to comment. 
 
1.25. All consultation comments and responses will be available to be considered 

when the Executive makes its final budget proposals on 2 February 2021. 
 

Page 17



 
2. Conclusion 
 
2.1. These budget proposals reflect the level of government funding expected to 

be available to the Council and a proposal to increase general Council Tax 
in 2021/22 by 1.99%.  

 
2.2. A thorough review of the Council's services was carried out during the 

budget process which has identified unavoidable cost pressures, some 
savings with minimal or no impact on the level of service provided and the 
capital programme has been reviewed. The budget proposals therefore aim 
to reflect the Council's priorities whilst operating within the resources 
available to it. 

 
 
3. Consultation 

 
 

 

 

 

 

a)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

An Equality Impact Assessment will be completed for the proposed increase in 
Council Tax. This will be reported to the Executive at its meeting on 2 February 
2021. 
 
Further risk and impact assessments will need to be undertaken on a service by 
service basis. 
 

 
 

4. Background Papers 
 

The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 
were relied upon in the writing of this report. 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Council Budget 
2021/22: Executive 
Report  
5 January 2021 

https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx
?CId=121&MId=5750 

 
 
This report was written by Keith Noyland, who can be contacted at 
keith.noyland@lincolnshire.gov.uk.  

Page 18

https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=5750
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=5750
mailto:keith.noyland@lincolnshire.gov.uk


 

 

       
 

Open Report on behalf of Mark Baxter, Chief Fire Officer 

 

Report to: 
Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny 
Committee 

Date: 26 January 2021 

Subject: East Coast Inundation Plan  

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

Following the meeting of the Executive on 6 October 2020, where Lincolnshire 
Fire and Rescue's (LFR) Integrated Risk Management Plan (IRMP) document 
was presented with the support of the Public Protection and Communities 
Scrutiny Committee, it was requested that a piece of 'scrutiny work' on coastal 
inundation and the management of it was carried out. Details were to include 
resources from a LFR perspective and how planning and preparations are 
carried out.  
 
This follows on from the decision by East Lindsey District Council (ELDC) to 
extend the caravan season into the winter/flood season.  
 
 

Actions Required: 

The Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee is asked to consider 
LFR’s response to East Coast inundation and seek assurance.  
 

 
1. Background 

 
The Community Risk Profile (CRP) identifies Flooding and severe Weather as one 
of our highest community risks within the County. Whilst there are a number of 
reasons for this as explained in the CRP, it is vitally important for LFR to ensure 
that we take appropriate measures to respond to and mitigate the potential impact 
of the identified risk. 
 
Response – Flood Assets 

 
All of LFR’s fire fighters are trained to operate in still flood waters and have the 
PPE and equipment to be deployed as and when required. To support this initial 
response we have a number of enhanced capabilities of specialist teams that can 
be deployed in still and flowing such as: 

 11 x Boats, both powered and non-powered 

 10 x Rescue rafts 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 All operational personnel with flood rescue PPE and equipment to be 
deployed in flooded areas 

 Enhanced rescue PPE and equipment for personnel operating in boats and 
flowing water 

 
To support the operational crews we also have specialist Flood ‘Tactical Advisors’ 
in Service to give advice and guidance on how to respond to significant flooding 
events.  These resources also link in with the National Resilience mutual aid. 
 
As part of the National Resilience mutual aid, LFR supports this by providing 
availability of some of our specialist boat teams and High Volume Pumps (HVP).  
We receive a supporting grant from DEFRA periodically to provide the specialist 
boat team support, however this funding has now been limited and following a 
review of the DEFRA Concept of Operations that states the standards of training 
and equipment, we are currently reviewing the amount of specialist teams we are 
able to provide for National Resilience. This will most likely be significantly 
reduced. 
 
This will not affect the amount of resources we can provide for our local risk to 
respond within Lincolnshire, but as we have relied previously on the DEFRA grant 
funding which is now reduced, we are reviewing the future funding challenge for 
providing a robust and appropriate response to flooding in Lincolnshire. 
   
Whilst all of our Fire Appliances have a pumping capability and will always be our 
first response to flooding type incidents, we also have a range of specialist pumps, 
including four trailer mounted flood pumps that have been purchased in partnership 
with the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) that can be deployed independently as 
requested.  Up until the recent events of the terrible Wainfleet floods in 2019, LFR 
only had two of these pumps, but a review and additional funding has allowed us to 
increase our capabilities.  The review identified the benefits of these pumps as not 
only being able to pump large quantities of water for long periods of time, but also 
requiring a limited number of crew to function, allowing our fully crewed appliances 
to be used for rescue operations and core functions.   
 
Our High Volume Pump capabilities within the County can also be supported and 
supplemented by National Resilience assets following a request for additional 
support, depending on the size and nature of the operations. 
 
LFR also has a number of low level submersible pumps that can be utilised in 
flooding scenarios. In the event of a widespread east coast inundation, Lincolnshire 
Resilience Forum (LRF) partners' resources would be considered with a multi-
agency plan developed, e.g. resources and assets would be pulled together for a 
collective response. 
 
East Coast Inundation Plan / Review & Development  
 
The East Coast Inundation Plan has been developed, periodically reviewed and 
updated over a number of years.  Due to the significant stretch of coast line and 
identified risk, the plan identifies key areas of operational procedure for LFR when 
dealing with a mass inundation on the east coast of Lincolnshire. It should be noted 

Page 20



 

 

that the East Coast Inundation Plan has been written on the planning assumption 
that East Coast caravan sites are closed during winter months, in line with 
Lincolnshire Resilience Forum's Strategic Coastal Flood Plan and Coastal Mass 
Evacuation and Shelter Plan. The additional risk posed by extended occupancy of 
caravan sites has not yet been analysed or taken into account in any of these 
Plans as the full impact and details are not yet understood. Plans are being 
reviewed with the support of LRF partners and cognisant of the potential changes. 
 
Details covered in the plan include: 
 

 Phase 1 – Response/Rescues 

 Phase 2 – Recovery  

 Command and Control 

 Multi-Agency Co-ordination  

 Areas of Focus – ‘Sectors’ along the length of the section of east coast in 
Lincolnshire  

 Locations identified for Strategic Holding Areas / Forward Command 
Points  

 
The plan aims to identify all areas to support early recognition of requirements and 
to effectively and efficiently establish an infrastructure to allow the management of 
an inundation type incident. 
 
The East Division Divisional Commander is responsible for the maintenance of the 
Plan and the periodic review and testing. 
 
East Coast planning and exercising for response to flooding along the East Coast 
is a well-established practice. It is important that LFR continues to develop and 
review the East Coast Inundation Plan and this is completed through periodic multi 
agency exercising.  
 
In March 2019 the Service Exercise focused on an inundation event which involved 
multiple sites being used to test a variety of capabilities. As part of the planning for 
this exercise, LFR established links with many Caravan sites and exercised at 
these locations.  

 
After the Wainfleet flooding event a multi-agency debrief was held with all relevant 
partners and a number of recommendations were identified for LFR.  As part of our 
on-going learning a number of improvements have been made. This has included: 
 

 Closer liaison with partners for training and exercising. 
 

 Awareness to the areas at risk following a mutual risk visit which was 
conducted by the Environment Agency; participants included 
representatives from all relevant LRF members. 

 

 Greater understanding throughout LFR Officer Cadre of the logistical 
requirements when dealing with large and prolonged flooding. 

 

Page 21



 

 

To support these learning outcomes and ensure we develop our response to this 
type of incident, our Organisational Development team, with the support of the 
National Resilience Assurance Team (NRAT), facilitated a programme of refresher 
training for our Officer Cadre throughout November and December 2020. The 
training provided an up to date overview of the process for requesting and 
implementing support from National Fire Service Assets, e.g. requesting additional 
high volume pumps, running a Forward Control Point and organising a Strategic 
Holding Area. 
 
Partnership Working  

 
Due to the potential size and complex nature of an east coast inundation incident, it 
is important that LFR work with identified partners to ensure a suitable and 
appropriate response is managed. A multi-agency response would be co-ordinated 
by the LRF, as it is highly likely a ‘major incident’ state of ‘Emergency’ would be 
declared. 
 
The periodic review of the plan is supported by the Emergency Planning (EP) 
team. LFR also liaises with other key partners to ensure any updates or 
amendments to the plan are made based on up to date information and 
developments, e.g. Environment Agency. 
 
Following the update received this year from the LRF that ELDC has applied to 
extend the period of the caravan season, resulting in residents all year round and 
the possibility of an increase in caravans along the east coast, close liaison with 
the Environment Agency and EP colleagues has taken place. Due to the impact of 
Covid-19, this extension has been delayed until next year, so therefore there is not 
an extension for residents in this current winter period. 
 
Early discussions have highlighted a number of areas in the existing LRF plans in 
relation to the additional risk that extended occupancy of east coast caravan sites 
will pose, where further work would be required. Existing LRF planning 
assumptions, including time and resources required for evacuation, shelter, and 
rescue activities, are based on the assumption that winter closure of caravan sites 
continues. Due to the vulnerable nature of caravans and the inability to implement 
“in situ” evacuation as an option, significant further work will have to be carried out 
to analyse the additional risk, and update the relevant plans with revised processes 
and resources needed to account for this risk.  
 
In addition to this, LFR also sits on the Flood Risk and Water Management Group, 
chaired by the EA.  Timely updates are discussed with awareness of the potential 
impact of amendments to licences, conditions and developing infrastructure along 
the east coast outlined. 
 
Periodic Review / Exercising of the East Coast Inundation Plan 
 
Although already in the process of reviewing the East Coast Inundation Plan as 
part of LFR’s 2020/21 Service Plan objectives, the recent developments and 
proposals made by ELDC will add a layer of planning and consideration required 
by the review process. In light of the recent developments and actions taken by 

Page 22



 

 

ELDC, a table top exercise of the East Coast Inundation plan will be taking place in 
February 2021.  The exercise is being facilitated by the Emergency Planning team 
and LRF partners will be involved.   
 
The exercise shall take place via Teams to ensure all staff can be Covid 
Compliant.  
 
The participants will however be encouraged to consider how the response to east 
coast flooding might differ if additional winter-occupancy caravan sites were to be 
added to the scenario and how many additional resources and assets might be 
needed to respond effectively.  
 
An important part of the exercise will be to capture the learning and ensure a multi-
agency debrief is carried out post exercise. This process will allow any 
recommendations for improvements to be discussed and agreed as a multi-agency 
group. 
 
Exercise Aim: 

 
To test LFR’s response to an east coast flooding event alongside the concurrent 
pandemic incident, and by doing so complete the annual exercise of the LFR East 
Coast Inundation Plan. 
 
Provisional Broad Objectives: 

 

 Provide an overview of the risk, and existing wider multi-agency planning in 
place. 

 Provide an opportunity to review ECI Plan content. 

 Review existing planning assumptions and response (evacuation vs rescue 
requirements) in light of the recent amendments to caravan occupancy 
proposals by ELDC. 

 Test procedures for requesting national assets. 

 Highlight interface between rescue and onward care of evacuees. 

 Familiarise Commanders with the East Coast Inundation (ECI) Plan.  

 Provide an opportunity to test ECI plan content and planning assumptions. 

 Consider impact of concurrent Covid-19 emergency. 

 Test procedures for requesting national resilience assets.  

 Test strategic holding area location and Enhanced Logistic Support (ELS). 

 Test Business Continuity (BC) plans. 

 Provide an opportunity to review lessons identified at the Wainfleet flooding 
of 2019. 

 
Relevant Plans to be considered as part of the Exercise: 

 LFR East Coast Inundation Plan  

 LRF Strategic Coastal Flood Plan for Lincolnshire 

 LRF concurrent incidents guidance    
 
 
 

Page 23



 

 

Potential Participants: 

 LRF 

 EA – LRF Flood Cell Chair 

 EP&BC – Flood lead 

 EP&BC – Mass Evac & Shelter lead 

 EP&BC – Training/Exercise lead/Facilitator 
 
LFR: 

 Gold Commander 

 Duty Officer 

 Silver Commander 

 Flood Tactical Advisor 

 Divisional Commander – East Division 

 Others TBC 
 
Nature of Exercise: 

 
To begin with a board overview of the risk and existing plans delivered by LRF 
colleagues to set the scene, followed by an overview of the ECI Plan.  
 
The exercise will consist of 3-4 discussion sessions, each around a common 
aspect. These will include: 
 

 Escalation and Activation of the plan. 

 Deployment levels based on scenario (number of swift water rescue assets 
required/available, support infrastructure, location considerations, Forward 
Control Points (FCPs) / Multi Agency Strategic Holding Area (MASHA) / Tac 
Holding areas / National Assets). 

 Review casualty landing area and interface for survivors with evac/shelter 
handoff. 

 Concurrent emergencies: impact of Covid on response/rescue and 
evac/shelter. 

 
2. Conclusion  
 
We are keen to ensure that the Executive and the Scrutiny Committee have 
confidence in not only our planning process but also our response to an East Coast 
Inundation type event.  We hope the details in this report outline the process that is 
followed and contributing factors to ensure that updates and amendments are 
based on relevant and pertinent information.   
 
In light of East Lindsey District Council's decision to extend the caravan season 
into the winter/flood season from next winter season, further work will be required 
to gain a full understanding of the impacts that winter occupancy of caravan sites 
will have on existing planning assumptions. Where appropriate, additional 
processes and resource requirements may need to be put in place before 
assurance can be given that the additional risk is accounted for.   
 

Page 24



 

 

A multi-agency approach to development is vital to ensuring robust plans are 
developed and exercised.  
 
The exercise is being planned for the second week of February 2021 and we would 
welcome councillor attendance to observe and contribute.   
 
3. Consultation 

 
 

 

 
 

 

a)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

 
Not Applicable 
 

4. Background Papers 
 
No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report. 
 

 
This report was written by Mark Baxter, Chief Fire Officer, who can be contacted on 
07799 110463 or by e-mail at Mark.Baxter@lincoln.fire-uk.org  
 

Page 25

mailto:Mark.Baxter@lincoln.fire-uk.org


This page is intentionally left blank



     
 

Open Report on behalf of Andrew Crookham,  
Executive Director – Resources 

 

Report to: 
Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny 
Committee 

Date: 26 January 2021 

Subject: 
Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny 
Committee Work Programme 

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This item enables the Committee to consider and comment on the content of its 
work programme for the coming year to ensure that scrutiny activity is focused 
where it can be of greatest benefit. The work programme will be reviewed at 
each meeting of the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and 
will add value to the work of the Council and partners.  
 
 

Actions Required: 

Members of the Committee are invited to review the work programme and 
highlight any additional scrutiny activity which could be included for consideration 
in the work programme. 
 

 
1. Background 
 
Overview and Scrutiny should be positive, constructive, independent, fair and 
open. The scrutiny process should be challenging, as its aim is to identify areas for 
improvement. Scrutiny activity should be targeted, focused and timely and include 
issues of corporate and local importance, where scrutiny activity can influence and 
add value. 
 
All members of overview and scrutiny committees are encouraged to bring forward 
important items of community interest to the committee whilst recognising that not 
all items will be taken up depending on available resource. 
 
Members are encouraged to highlight items that could be included for 
consideration in the work programme.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



2. Work Programme 
 

26 JANUARY 2021 

Item Contributor 

1 Revenue and Capital Budget Proposals 

2021/22 

Pre-Decision Scrutiny – Executive 

Keith Noyland, Head of Finance - 
Communities 

2 East Coast Inundation Plan Mark Baxter, Chief Fire Officer 

 
 

16 MARCH 2021 

Item Contributor 

1 Service Level Performance Reporting 
against the Performance Framework 
2020-2021 – Quarter 3 

Sara Barry, Acting Assistant Director -  
Public Protection 
Nicole Hilton, Assistant Director - 
Communities  
Mark Baxter, Chief Fire Officer 

2 Prevent Proposed Delivery Plan Clare Newborn, Interim Head of Service - 
Community Safety 

 
 

27 APRIL 2021 

Item Contributor 

1   

 
 
 

15 JUNE 2021 

Item Contributor 

1 Introduction to Service Areas reporting to 
the Public Protection and Communities 
Scrutiny Committee 

Sara Barry, Acting Assistant Director -  
Public Protection 
Nicole Hilton, Assistant Director - 
Communities  
Mark Baxter, Chief Fire Officer 

 
 

27 JULY 2021 

Item Contributor 

1 Service Level Performance Reporting 
against the Performance Framework 
2020-2021 – Quarter 4 

Sara Barry, Acting Assistant Director -  
Public Protection 
Nicole Hilton, Assistant Director - 
Communities  
Mark Baxter, Chief Fire Officer 

Page 28



2 Coroners Service's Update on 
Transformation Project and Potential 
Merger with North and North East 
Lincolnshire 

Paul Smith, Acting Senior Coroner 
Sara Barry, Acting Assistant Director -
Public Protection 

 SITTING AS THE CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

3 Modern Slavery Update Jonny Goldsmith (Community Safety 
Strategy Coordinator)  
Clare Newborn (Acting Joint Head of 
Safer Communities) 

 
 

3. Conclusion 

Members of the Committee are invited to review and comment on the work 
programme and highlight any additional scrutiny activity which could be included 
for consideration in the work programme. 
 
 
4. Consultation 

 
 

 
 

 

 

a)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

N/A 
 
 

5. Appendices 

 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Forward Plan of Decisions relating to the Public Protection and 
Communities Scrutiny Committee 

 
 
6. Background Papers 
 
No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
 
This report was written by Tracy Johnson, Senior Scrutiny Officer, who can be 
contacted on 07552 253814 or by e-mail at tracy.johnson@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

Page 29



APPENDIX A 
 

Forward Plan of Decisions relating to the Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee 
 

 
DEC REF MATTERS FOR 

DECISION 
DATE OF 
DECISION 

DECISION 
MAKER 

PEOPLE/GROUPS 
CONSULTED PRIOR TO 
DECISION 

DOCUMENTS 
TO BE 
SUBMITTED 
FOR 
DECISION 

HOW AND WHEN TO 
COMMENT PRIOR TO 
THE DECISION BEING 
TAKEN 

RESPONSIBLE 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER 
AND CHIEF OFFICER 

KEY 
DECISION 
YES/NO 

DIVISIONS 
AFFECTED 

          

 

P
age 30


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 8 December 2020
	5 Revenue and Capital Budget Proposals 2021/22
	6 East Coast Inundation Plan
	7 Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee Work Programme

